
































Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited {CIN - US2100GJ2015PTC082996)

Balance Sheet as at March 21, 2022
Amount in Rs.

As at As-at

FaLticulars, = Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 15,61,29,459 22,84,80,795
(b} Right-of-use assets 34 66,56,80,588 63,77,33,164
{¢) Intangible assets 6 - 71,127
(d} Firancial assets
(i} Other financial assets 7 (d) 13,56,03,692 17,11,01,384
{e) Deferred tax assets (net) 25 17,02,65,744 17,02,65,744
{f) Non-current tax assets 10 1,65,97,190 1,28,99,480
(g) Cther non-current assets 8 648,524 -
Total non-current assets 1,14,49,25,197 1,22,05,51,694
II.Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 98,39,32,558 65,35,12,924
(b) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 (B) 2,21,97,922 33,904,788
(ii) Bank balances other than (i) above 7 (c) 1,15,11,929 61,938
(iii} Loans 7 (a) 10,16,325 4,67,310
(iv) Others financial assets 7 (d) 8,21,36,977 10,78,05,879
(¢} Other current assets 8 21,29,90,457 6,92,98,691
Total current assets 1,31,37,86,168 83,45,41,530
Total Assets 2,45,87,11,365 2,05,50,93,224
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 8,93,94,880 7,68,94,880
(b} Other equity 12 6,51,47,724 33,28,75,875
Total equity 15,45,42,604 40,97,70,755
LIABILITIES
I. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings 13 (a) - 2,26,697
(ii} Lease liabilities 34 60,07,39,238 66,81,60,775
{b) Long-term provisions 14 64,58,583 80,60,740
Total non-current liabilities 60,71,97,821 67,64,48,212
II.Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 13 (a) 73,03,15,464 41,00,87,707
(ii) Lease liabilities 34 21,89,00,174 15,30,69,435
{iii) Trade payables & 13 (b}
a) Total outstanding dues of micro entersrises and small _ )
enterprises ) ) _
b} Total_ outstanding dues of t;redltors other than micro 69,12,72,786 35,67,07,357
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv} Other financial liabilities 13 (c) 47,59,196 1,76,73,796
(b} QOther current liabilities i5 4,64,27,265 2,57,00,053
(c) Shert-term provisions 14 52,596,055 55,45,909
Total current liabilities 1,69,69,70,940 96.88,74,257
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,45,87,11,365 2,05,50,93,224
Significant Accounting Policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
In terms of our report attached
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limite

Firm Registrati

Gt i | -

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B. Jayesh K Shah

Partner Director Director
Membership No. 100892 DIN: 00008349 DIN: 09612583
Place : Bengaluru Place : Bengaluru

Date : May 26, 2022 Date : May 26, 2022




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100GJ2015PTC082996)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

Amount in Rs.

= _ Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes ; -
: March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
I. Income
Revenue from operations
Sale of Products 16 2,39,20,37,442 1,40,38,29,207
Sale of Services 16 3,24,42,967 81,40,593
Operating Income 16 7,15,646 3,26,275
Revenue from operations 2,42,51,96,055 1,41,22,96,075
Other income 17 8,40,75,944 11,82,38,889
Total income {I) 2,50,92,71,999 1,53,05,34,964
II. Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 18 1,82,83,91,983 66,70,83,730
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 19 (33,04,19,634) 19,94,00,288
Employee benefits expense 20 26,66,41,678 19,77,10,923
Finance costs 21 12,02,82,433 15,87,53,060
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 33,20,97,866 28,12,90,819
Other expenses 23 55,68,75,789 33,75,60,171
Total expenses (II) 2,77,38,70,115 1,84,17,98,991
IIIL Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-IT) (26,45,98,116) (31,12,64,027)
IV. Exceptional items 24 - {1,66,00,000)
V. Profit/(Loss) before tax (ITI-IV) (26,45,98,116) (32,78,64,027)
VI. Tax expense
Current tax 25 = -
Deferred Tax charge / (credit) 25 3,61,109 (1,67,62,318)
Total tax expense 3,61,109 (1,57,62,318)
VII. Profit/{Loss) for the year (V-VI) {26,49,59,225) {31,21,01,709)
VIII. Other comprehensive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans 30 (13,88,880) 5,61,067
Income tax effect on above 25 3,61,109 {1,45,877)
(10,27,771) 4,15,190
Other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified to profit or (16,27,771) 4,15,190
loss (Net)
IX. Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax
(VII+VII) ’ (26,59,86,996) {31,16,86,519)
X. Earnings per equity share
Nominaf Value per share -~ Rs, 10/- (Previous year - Rs. 10/-)
Basic - Rs. 32 {31.61) (40.59)
Diluted - Rs, 32 {31.61) (40.48)
Significant Accounting Policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration,No. 110417wW 0

Obfle dl N

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B,
Partner
Membership No, 100892

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 26, 2022

.

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 26, 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Lim

—

Jayesh K Shah
Director
DIN: 00008349

2

Piyush Gupta
Director
DIN: 09612583




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited {CIN - U52100GJ2015PTC082998)

Statement of Cash Flows far the year ended March 31, 2022

Amount in Rs.

Particnl Year snded Year ended
shap March 31, 2022 March 31, 7021
A Operating activities
Profit/{Loss) Before taxation (26,45,98,118) (232,78,64,027)
Adjustments to recancile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation /JAmoriization 33,20,97,866 28,12,90,815
Interest Income (93,03,297) (17,017}
Interest and Other Borrowing Cost 12,02,82,433 15,87,53,080
Gain on reassessment of lease {7,46,92,139) (11,82,10,927)
Allowance far deubtfu! advances/written off - 3,532,644
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipmant - 2,36,122
Share based payment expense 1,07,58,845 2,23,31,250
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 11,45,45,592 1,68,72,924
Working Capitai Changes:
(Increase) f Decrease In Inventories (33,04,19,634) 1%,94,00,288
(Increase) f Decrease in other assets (14,36,91,766) 5,54,05,097
{Increase) f Decrease in other finandial assets 6,07,22,732 (9,38,92,358)
{Increase} / Decrease in other bank balances (1,14,49,991) 1,38,062
Increase f {Decrease) in trade payabies 33,44,75,429 (2,61,74,985)
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities 2,07,27,212 {93,04,672)
Increase { (Decrease) in other financial liabilities {1,18,12,545) 4,65,637
Increase [ (Decrease) in provisions {32,40,891) 4495119
Net Changes in Working Capital {8,46,89,454) 13,05,36,088
Cash Generated from Operations 2,98,56,138 14,74,09,012
Direct Taxes paid (Net of Income Tax refund) (36,897,710} {9,88,835)
Net Cash flow recelved f (used in} Qperating Activities 2,61,58,428 14,64,20,177
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment / intangible assets (4,42,81,678) (2,32,05,015)
Changes i capital advances (6,48,524) 21,72,745
Interest recelved 91,908,144 13,665
Net Cash flow received / {used in} Investing Activities (3,57,32,058) (2,10,18,609)
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Changes In long term borrowings (2,26,697) {17,20,318)
Changes in short term barrowings 32,02,27,757 (16,09,98,841)
Share application monay received, pending allotment - 25,00,00,000
Repayment of Lease Liabilities {17,02,39,808) (5,15,67,023)
interest and Cther Borrowing Cost Paid {17,13,84,488) (15,80,60,765)
Net Cash flow received / {used in) Financing Activities 2,83,76,764 (12,23,46,947}
Nt Increase/{Decrease) in cash & eash equivalents 1,88,03,134 30,54,621
Cash & Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 33,594,788 3,40,167
Cash & Cash equivalent at the end of the year 2,21,87,922 33,894,788
Figures in brackets indicate outflows.
Amount in Rs.
e e T Year ended “Yearended
Pt March 31, 3022 Marehia1, 2021
Cash and cash equivaients comprise of:
Cash on Hand - -
Balances with Banks 2,21,97,922 33,894,788
Cash and cash equivalents 2,21,97,922 33,94,788

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements,

Disciosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on cash flow statements under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rufes, 2015 {as amended)

: Non Cash-Changes:

‘particulars of Tiahilities:acising from financing Note  AgatAprill, E flow Adjustmant'onaccount . Effect.of changein : Agat

-ackivity No. 2p2% e of Business Foreigr €1 ¥ Other-Changes®*  March 3%, 2022
Combyination " Rates :

Borrowings:

Long term horrowings 13{a) 2,26,697 (2,265,697} - - - =

Short term barrowings 13(a) 41,00,87,707 32,02,27,757 2 - - 73,03,15,464

Total 41,02,14,.404 32,00,01,060 - - - 73,03,15,464

g = : ; T = "Non CashGranges

‘Particufars of fiabilittes arising from financing Note: AsatApril X, Netcashflows  Adiustoient.onaccount: Effect:ofchangein A5 Bt

‘activity : - No. 20290 s B of Busi Foreign Giirréncy Other Chahges® March’31, 2021
‘Combination Rates .

Borrowings:

Long term borrowings 13(a) 19,47,01%5 (17,20,318) = - = 2,26,697

Short term berrowings 13(a) 57,10,86,548 (16,09,98,841) - - - 41,00,87,707

Total 57,30,33,563 {16,27,19,159) - N - 41,03,14,404

* The same relates to amount charged in staterment of profit and loss.

Notes:

1) The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) "Statement of Cash Flows"
2) Purchase of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets include movement of capital agvances and capital work-in-progress.

In terms of our report attached
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountan

Firm Registyation N 0417W -
dﬂ.ﬂ, L

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Membership No. 100892
Partner

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 26, 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited /

Jayesh K Shah
Director
DIN: 00008349

)

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 26, 2022

Piyush*Gupta
Directar
DIN: 09612583




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100GJ2015PTC082996)
Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A. Equity share capital

Balance No. of shares ‘Amgunt in Rs.
Note 1.1

As at April 1, 2020 76,89,488 7,68,94,880

Issue of Equity Share capital - B

As at March 31, 2021 76,880,488 7,68,94,880

Issue of Equity Share capital 12,50,000 1,25,00,000

As at March 31, 2022 89,39,488 8,93,94,880

Amount in Rs.

B. Other equity

‘Particulars Reserves and Surplus Fotal equity
Share application | Securities premiuvm] Contribution | Retained Earnings
money pending | from:Parent |
allotment for ES0P
= Note 12 Note 12 Note 12 Note 12

Balance as at April 1, 2020 = 83,32,04,742 2,74,52,442 (48,84,26,040) 37,22,31,144
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - - (31,21,01,709) (31,21,01,709)
Addition during the year 25,00,00,000 - 2,23,31,250 4,15,190 27,27,46,440
Other comprehensiva income for the period 25,00,00,000 - 2,23,31,250 (31,16,86,519) {3,93,55,269)
Total Comprehensive income for the period . 3 -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 25,00,00,000 £83,32,04,742 4,97,83,692 (80,01,12,559) 33,28,75,875
Balance as at April 1, 2021 25,00,00,000 83,32,04,742  4,97,83,692 (80,01,12,559)  33,28,75,875
Profit / {Loss) for the year - - P {26,49,59,225) (26,49,59,225)
Addition during the year 1,07,58,845 - 1,07,58,845
Share issued during the year -25,00,00,000 23,75,00,000 = - {1,25,00,000}
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - (10,27 771} (10,27,771)
Total Comprehensive income for the period -25,00,00,000 23,75,00,000 1,07,58,845 (26,59,86,996) (26,77,28,151)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 1,07,07,04,742 __ 6,05,42,537 {1,06,60,59,555) 6,51,47,724

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our repori attached
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration,No. 110417W

ool i &

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

(

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited

e

Jayesh K Shah
Director
DIN: 00008349

Partner

Membership Ng. 100892
Place : Bengaiuru

Date : May 26, 2022

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 26, 2022

AW

Piyus:yi)&p

Director
DIN: 09612583
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Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100GJ2015PTC082996)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 6 ;: Intangible assets

Amount in Rs.

Computer Software Brand Value & Total Intangible.
Particulars License Brands Assets
Gross Carrying Value
As at April 1, 2020 93,44,079 3,23,01,032 4,16,45,111
Additions - - -
Deductions _ -
As at March 31, 2021 93,44,079 3,23,01,032 4,16,45,111
Additions - - -
Deductions - -
As at March 31, 2022 93,44,079 3,23,01,032 4,16,45,111
Amortization and Impairment
As at April 1, 2020 55,29,365 2,94,42,805 3,49,72,170
Amortization for the Year 37,43,587 28,58,227 66,01,814
Deductions = - -
As at March 31, 2021 92,72,952 3,23,01,032 4,15,73,984
Amortization for the Year 71,127 = 71,127
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2022 93,44,079 3,23,01,032 4,16,45,111
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2022 - - -
As at March 31, 2021 71,127 - 71,127




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100GJ2015PTC082996)

Notes to the Financial Siatements

Note 7 : Financial assets

7 (a) Loans
Amount in Rs.

St As:at As at
P March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, Censidered Good unless otherwise stated
Current

Loans to employees 10,16,325 4,67,310
Total Loans 10,16,325 4,67,310

No leans are due from directors or promotors of the Company either severally or jointly with any person,

7 (b) Cash and cash equivalent

Amount in Rs,

" As at As.at
-Paicuiat Mairch 31, 2022 March 31, 2091
Balance with Bank

In Current accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 2,21,97,922 33,94,788
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,21,97,922 33,94,788
7 (c) Other bank balance

Amount in Rs.
=i g As.at As at:
TatRu s March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Deposits with original maturity less than 12 months 1,15,11,929 61,938
Total other bank balances 1,15,11,929 61,938
Total Cash and Bank Balances 3,37,09,851 34,56,726
7 (d) Other financial assets
{Unsecured, considered good untess otherwise stated} Amount in Rs.

As.at As:at

Particulars

March 21, 2622

Masch 31, 2021

Non-current

Security deposits 13,53,27,430 17,09,01,384
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 2,76,262 2,00,000
13,56,03,692 17,11,01,384
Current

Security deposits 70,583,368 -
Accrued Interest 1,14,887 5,834
Other Receivables 7,49,28,622 10,77,96,045
8,21,36,977 10,78,05,879
Total other financial assets 21,77,40,669 27,89,07,263




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100G632015PTC0B2996)

Notes to the Financial Statements

7 {e) : Financial Assets by category

Amount in Rs.

‘Particulars:

FVTPL

FVOCI

Amoriised Cost

Trade Recievables
Loans

Cash and Cash equivalents

Other Bank Balance
Other financial assets

March 3 1, 2022

10,16,325
2,21,97,922
1,15,11,92¢

21,77,40,669

Total Financial Assets

35,24,66,845

Trade Recievables
Loans

Cash and Cash equivalents

Other Bank Balance
Cther financial assets

March 31, 2021

4,67,310
33,94,788
61,938
27,89,07,263

Total Financial Assets

28,28,31,299

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 37

Fair value disclosure for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 35 and fair value hierarchy disclasures are in Note 36

Note 8 : Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated}

Amount in Rs.

i 3 Asat Asat
Falbena March 31, 2022 March 31; 2021
Non-current
Sales Tax Paid under protest 6,48,524 =
Capital advances = =
6,48,524 =
Current
Advances
Advance to others 50,85,060 38,81,216
Prepaid expenses 25,67,135 16,88,429
Returnable Assets 66,31,757 |
Balance with Government Authorities (Refer note 1 below) 19,54,20,276 6,34,81,517
Balance with collectorate of central excise and customs 18,80,022 2,47,529
Other Current Assets 14,06,167 -
21,29,90,457 6,92,98,691
Total 21,236,328 981 50298691

Advance to directors or to firm/private company where director is interested

Note :

1, Balance with Government Authorities mainly consist of input credit availed,

Note 0 1 Inventories (At lower of cost and net realizable value}

Amount in Rs,

b As at As at
Pantituidls March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Stock-in-trade 98,39,32,558 64,75,29,683
Packing materials - 59,83,241
Total 98,39,32 558 655,35,12,924

1) Inventory write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing and net realizable value, for Rs. 5,96,44,246
(March 31, 2021: Rs. 4,76,53,986/- ). The changes in write downs are recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss.

Note 10 : Current Tax Assets (Net)

Amount in Rs.

sParticulars:

Asat

March 31, 2022

As-at

March 31, 2021

Tax Paid in Advance {Net of Provision)

1,65,97,190

1,28,99,480

Total

1,65,97,190

1,28,99,480




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100G12015PTC082996)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 11 : Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Particular : e
Areen No. of shares Amount in Rs. No. of shares Amount in Rs.

Authorised share capitafl
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000

{March 31, 2021: Rs. 10 each)

Issued and subscribed share capital
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each 89,39,488 8,93,94,880 76,89,488 7,68,94,880

(March 31, 2021: Rs. 10 each}

Subscribed and fuily paid up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 89,39,488 8,93,94,880 76,890,488 7,68,94,880

{March 31, 2021: Rs. 10 each)

Total 89,39,488 8,93,94,880 76,89,488 7,68,94,880

11.1. Reconciliation of shares

o As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars No. of sharés AmiountinRs.  No. of shares Amount in-Rs.
At the beginning of the period 76,89,488 7,68,94,880 76,89, 488 7,68,94,880
Add: Shares issued during the year 12,50,000 1,25,00,000 - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 89,39,488 8,93,94,880 76,89 488 7,68,94,880

11.2. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

11.3. Shares held by holding company

Particulars ‘ As at March 31, 2022 : A‘sﬂ.at March 31, 2q2_1
No. of shares Amount in Rs. No. of shares Amount in Rs.
GOy TS 89,39,488 8,93,94,880 76,89,488 7,68,94,880

(along with nominees)

11.4. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares In the Company and Share holding of promorters

: As at March 34, 2022 ~ As at March 31, 2021
'me of the.Sharehelder: : :
Namestin i No. of shares. 9% of sharehelding No. of shares %% of shareholding
wipind ashiensyimited 89,39,488 100%  76,89,488 100%

(along with nominees)

11.5 Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 38.




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited {CIN - U52100GJ2015PTC082996)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 12 : Other Equity

Amount in Rs.

Parficulars

As at
March.341, 2022

Asat
March 31, 2021

Note 12.1 Reserves & Surplus

Share Application money pending for aliotment
Balance as per last financial statements
Add: additien during the year
Less: Shares issued during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Securities premium
Balance es per last financial statements
Add; Shares issued during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Contribution from Parent for ESOP {Refer Note 33)
Baiance as per last finrancial statements
Add: Contribution received during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Surplus in statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statements
Impact on adoption of Ind AS 116
Tax Impact on adoption of Ind AS 116
Add: Profit/{loss) for the year

25,00,00,000
= 25,00,00,000
(25,00,00,000) N
- 25,00,00,000
83,32,04,742 83,32,04,742
23,75,00,000 =
1.07,07,04,742 83,32,04,742
4,97,83,697 2,74,52,442
1,07,58,845 2,23,31,250
6,05,42,537 4,97,83,692
(80,01,12,559) (48,84,26,040)

(26,49,59,225.00)

(31,21,01,709)

Add [ (Less): OCI for the year {310,27,771) 4,15,190

Balance at the end of the year {1,06,60,99,555) (80,01,12,559}
Total raserves & surplus 6,51,47,724 33,28,75,875
Total Other equity 6,51,47,724 33,28,75,875

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows :

Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is created due to premium on issue of shares. These reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

Contribution from Parent for ESOP

This reserve relates toe share opticns granted by Arvind Fashions Limited {Holding Company)} under it's employae share option plan. Further Infermation about

share-based payments to employees is set out in Note 33,

Mote 13 : Financial liabilities

12 {a) Borrowings

Amount in Rs,

Particulars

Asat.
March 31, 2023

As:al
March 31, 20231

Long-term Borrowings {Refer Note 1{a} below}
{At amoriised cost)
Non-current portion
Sacured
Term loan from Banks

Total long-term borrowings

Short-term Borrowings (Refer Note 1{b}}
{At amortised cast)
Secured (at amortised cost)
Current maturities
Term loan from Banks
Working Capital Loans
Working Capital Loans repayable on demand from Banks

2,26,697

2,26,697

2,26,697

25,00,00,000

2,51,851

30,00,00,000

Unsecured
Intercorporate Deposits - Frorn Related Parties (Refer Note 31) 48,00,88,767 10,98,35,856
Total short-term borrowings 73,03,15,464 41,00,87,707
Total borrowings 73,03,15,464 41,03,14,404




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited {CIN - US2100GJ2015PTCOR2986)
Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Secured Borrowings
{a) Long term

a Hire Purchase leans from are secured against hypothication of related vehicles

Rate of Interest and Terms of Repayment
. R Rate-of : - 5
Particulars Amoant in R;. Intarest Security Terms:of repayment
Hire Purchase loans 2,26,697 8.50% Hypothecation of Vehicles
Monthiy payment of 60
Equated Manthly
Instalments beginning from
the month subsequent to
taking the leans
b Inter Corperate Deposit carries interest rate of 8.50% per annum.
¢’ s —  Rateor e
= Particularg = AmountinRs: Interaet _ Security
Working Capital loans 25,00,00,000 7.25% 1. First charge an entire current assets.
2. Corporate guarantee by Arvingd Fashions Limited {Rolding
Company}
d All necessary charges or satisfaction are registered with ROC within the statutory peried.
& The company has used the borrowings from banks and firancial institutions for the specific purpese for which it was taken.
f Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financia? institutes are in agreement with the books of accounts.
13 {b) Trade payables
Amount in Rs.
“Particuiars Asat Asat
; ‘March 31,2022 Marchi3l, 2021
Current
Acceptances - -
Other Trade Payables
-Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalf enterprisas {refer note a befow) - -
-Total cutstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 69,12,72,786 35,67,97,357
Total 69,12,72,786 35,67,97,357
Note:

The Company has not received any intimation from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development {MSMED) Act, 2006 and
hence disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 regarding:

{a) the principai amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid te supplier at the end of each accounting year;
{b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006).

{c) Amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appeinted day during accounting year;
(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyand the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

({2) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

{f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpese of disailowance of 2 deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

Trade Pavables ageing schedule:
As at March 33, 2022

Particulars

Not due Outstanding for foliowing periods from due date of Payment Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

MSME - - -
Others 46,83,32,066 10,09.49,417 - - - 56,92,81,483
Disputed dues - MSME = = =

Disputed dues - Others

Unbilled dues 12,15,91.303 o = = 2 12,19.91,303
Total 59.03,23,362 10,09,49.417 N =] 0 69,12,72,786

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars Not due Outstanding for fellowing periods from due date of Payment Total
Less than & year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
MSME - & 2 = = -
Others 23,90,86,419 7,02,66,817 = - - 30,93,53.236
Disputed dues - MSME = = = = = -
Disputed duss - Others = = S = E S
Unbilled dues 4.74,44,121 = 2 = . 4,74,44,121
Total 28,65,30,54¢0 7,02,66,817 - - - 35,67,87,357
13 (c) Other financial liabifities
Amount in Rs.
Particulars As-at As at ]
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current
Interest accrued and due 1,78,767 12,80,822
Payable to employees 12,71,662 1,33,53,693
Payable for capital goods 33,08,767 30,39,281
47,59,196 1,76,73,796
Total 47,59,196 1,76,73,796

Note: As at March 31, 2022 there is no amount due and cutstanding to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN -~ U52100G]2015PTCOB2996)

Motes to the Financial Statements
13{d) : Financial Liabilities by category

Amount in Rs.

‘Particulars

FYTPL

FVOCT

Amortized Cost

March 31, 2022
Borrowings
Trade payables
Payable to employess
Interest Accrued but Due
Lease Liabilities
Payabla in respect of Capital goeds

73,03,15,464
69,12,72,786
12,71,662
1,78,767
1,96,39,412
33,08,767

Total Financial liabilities

2,24,59,86,858

March 3t, 2021
Borrowings
Trade payables
Fayable to employees

41,03,14,404
35,67,97,357
1,33,53,653

Interest Accrued and Due - 12,80,822
Lease Liabilities = 82,12,30,210
Payable in respect of Capital goods = 30,39,281
Total Financial liabilities = 1,60,60,15,767

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 37
Fair value disclosure for financiat assets and ligbilities are in Note 35 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 36
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Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - US2100G)2015PTC0S2996)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 14: Provisions

Amount in Rs.

As at
March 31, 2021

Particulars Asar
#March 31, 2022
Long-term

Provision for amployee benefits {Refer Note 30}

Provisicn for leave encashment 64,58,583 41,04,963
Provision for Gratuity - 39,565,777
54,58,583 80,60,730
Short-term
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 30}
Provision for leave encashment = 19,02,729
Provision for Gratuity 50,41,342 =
Others
Short term provision for Litigation/disputed matters {Refer Note a below) 2,54,713 35,43,180
52,896,055 55,45,909
Tatal 1,17,54,638 1,36,06,649

(a} Provision for litigation/ disputed matters

The Company has made provisions for pending disputed matters in respect of Indirect taxes Jike GST, Sales tax, Excise duty and Customs duty, the liability which may

arise in the future, the guantum whareof will be determined as and when the matters are disposed off.

The movement in the provision account is as under :

Amount in Rs.

P ey
‘Patticalars As at As at
March 31,2023 March31,2025
Balznce as pear last financial statements 36,43,180 8,53,248
Addition during the year (Net) (Refer Note 23) = 40,00,000
Settfement during the year (Net} (33,88,467) {12,10,068)
Balance as at the end of the year 2,54,713 36,43,180
Note 15 : Other current liabilities / non current liabilities
— Amount in Rs.
‘Particuiars Asat. As:at :
March 331, 2022 March 31, 2022
Current
Liakility for Vouchers issued 1,02,83,879 61,004,540
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source etc. 50,32,743 1,12,27,692
Deferred income of lovalty program reward peints {Refer note (a) below) 1,59,16,584 66,82,824
Refund Liability 1,18,25,967 -
Deferred income for Unaccrued Sale 23,68,092 16,84,997
Total 4,64,27,265 2,57,00,053

(a) Deferred income of Loyalty Program Reward Points

The Company has deferred the revenue related to the customer loyalty program reward points. The movemant in deferred revenue for those reward points are given

below ;

Amount in Rs.
Particulars Ag-at ‘As at
i March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance as per last finandial statements 66,82,824 1,70,28,698
Add: Provision made during the year (Net) (Refer Note 16) 92,33,760 43,97,436
(Less}: Redemption made during the year - 1,47,43,310
Balance at the end of the year 1,59,16,584 66,82,824




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - US2100GJ2015PTC082996)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 16 : Revenue from operations

Amount in Rs.

- Year Ended Year Ended
Aartieulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale of products 2,39,20,37,442 1,40,38,29,207
Sale of services 3,24,42,967 B81,40,593
Operating income

Foreian exchange fluctuation on vendors (Net) 7,15,646 3,26,275
Total 2,42,51,96,055 1,41,22,96,075
1. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers Amount in Rs.

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars
articul March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

A, Revenue based on Geography

i. Domestic 2,42,51,96,055 1,41,22,96,075
ii. Export - -
2,42,51,96,055 1,41,22,96,075
B. Revenue based on Business Segment
Cosmetics products 2,39,20,37,442 1,40,38,29,207
Others* 3,31,58,613 84,656,868
2,42,51,96,055 1,41,22,96,075
*It includes revenue from space on hire, insurance claims and exchange difference
II. Reconciliation of Revenue from Operation with Contract Price Amount in Rs.
: Year Ended Year Ended:
Particula .
ettt March 31, 2022 March 31, 202
Contract Price 2,44,49,81,941 1,41,66,93,511
Less:
Sales Returns 1,05,52,126 -
Customer Loyalty Program 92,33,760 43,97,436
Total Revenue from Operations 2,42,51,96,055 1,41,22 96,075
Note 17 : Other income
Amount in Rs.
! ieul YearEnded Year Ended
Particulars March 33, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost 93,03,297 17,017
Gain on reassessment of lease (Refer Note 34) 7,46,92,139 11,82,10,927
Profit on sale of fixed assets (Net) 80,508
Miscellanecus tncome - 10,945
Total 8,40,75,944 11,82,38,880
Note 18 : Purchases of stock-in-trade
Amount in Rs.
e Year Ended Year Ended
5 Ef
Parviigts March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cosmetics & Accessories 1,82,83,91,983 66,70,83,730
Total 1,82,83,91,983 66,70,83,730

Note 19 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Amount in Rs.

== = : Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March 33, 2021

Stock at the end of the year

Stock-in-trade 98,39,32,558

Stock at the beginning of the year

Stock-in-trade 65,35,12,924

65,35,12,924

85,29,13,212

Total {33,04,19,634} 19,94,00,288
Note 20 : Employee benefits expense

__Amount in Rs.

2k Year Ended Year Ended

e ‘March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages, gratuity, bonus, commissicn, etc. (Refer Note 30} 23,56,00,085 15,61,88,024
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,20,35,753 94,91,417
Welfare and training expenses 82,46,995 97,00,222
Share based payment to employees (Refer Note 33) 1,07,58,845 2,23,31,250
Total 26,66,41,678 19,77,10,923




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100GJ2015PTC082996)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 21 : Finance costs

Amount in Rs.

Particulars.

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March:31, 2021

Interest Expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Ferm Loans 18,715 58,199

Cash Credit 1,51,35,171 69,81,507

Cthers 2,22,72,801 7,30,14,465

Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34) 8,28,55,746 7,86,98,889
Total 12,02,82,433 15,87,53,060
Note 22 : Depreciation and amortization expense

_ Amount in Rs.

; L Year:Enderd Year Ended
Particilars March 33, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 5) 11,66,33,014 9,73,29,020
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6} 71,127 66,01,814
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 34) 21,53,93,725 17,73,55,985

Total

33,20,97,866

28,12,90,819

Note 23 : Other expenses

Amount in Rs.

i - “Year Ended Year Ended:
Particiine March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Power and fuel 3,67,60,529 2,56,01,118
Service Charges 4,96,80,000 2,80,80,000
Insurance 29,11,907 27,92,424
Printing, stationery & communication 38,72,639 35,51,455
Rent

- Short Term leases and leases of low-value assets (Refer Note 34) 10,36,80,171 6,07,91,544
Commission, Brokerage & Discount 62,78,581 29,16,884
Rates and taxes 77.33,128 53,46,306
Provision for litigation/ disputed matters (Refer Note 14) 40,00,000
Repairs :

To Others 6,62,38,837 4,88,82,564
Royalty on Sales 4,80,77,478 2,86,82,034
Freight, insurance & clearing charge 2,00,29,688 1,40,69,604
tegal & Professional charges 2,90,08,242 44,66,710
Housekeeping Charges 1,21,83,544 75,50,750
Security Charges 1,34,39,994 90,53,588
Conveyance & Travelling expense 75,42,900 19,50,869
Advertisement and Publicity 11,17,18,993 6,21,34,389
Sales Promoticn 34,57,614 10,92,320
Charges for Credit Card Transactions 91,01,993 60,15,344
Packing Materials Expenses 83,87,742 67,55,869
Contract Labour Charges 48,13,725 43,83,525
Sundry debits written off - 3,53,644
Sampling and Testing Expenses = 9,745
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 2,36,122
Auditor's remuneration {Refer Note a below) 28,88,196 27,14,600
Bank charges 53,30,214 21,14,252
Miscellaneous expenses 37,39,673 40,14,471
Total 55,68,75,789 33,75,60,171
a. Break up of Auditor's Remuneration . Amount in Rs.

: Year Ended Year Ended
Partioulare March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Payment to Auditors as :

Auditors 12,00,000 12,00,000

For tax audit 5,053,000 3,15,000

For GST audit 5,00,000 5,00,000

For gather certification work 4,75,196 5,54,600

For reimbursement of expenses 2,08,000 1,45,000
Total 28,88,1596 27,114,600




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100GJ2015PTC082996)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 24 : Exceptional Item

Amgunt in Rs.

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

_ Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Inventory Dormancy Provision

(1,66,00,000)

Total

{1,66,00,000)




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited {CIN - U52100GJ2015PTC082996)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 25 : Income Tax

The major component of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:

Amount in Rs.

e z Year Ended “Year Ended
Fadigials March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Statement of Profit & Loss
Deferred Tax

Deferred tax Charge/{Credit) 3,61,109 (1,57,62,318)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of
standalone profit & loss 3,61,109 (1,57,62,318)
OCI Section

. Amount in Rs.

= s Year Ended Year Ended
Particildes - March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Statement to Other comprehensive income {OCI)
Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCI during
the year
Net loss/(gain) on actuarial gains and losses 3,61,109 (1,45,877)
Deferred tax charged to OCI 4,05,760 (1,01,591)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended

March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:
A) Current tax

Amount in Rs.

: Year Ended YearEnded
Particulars — March:31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Accounting loss before tax from centinuing operations (26,45,98,116) (32,78,64,027)
Tax Rate 26% 26%
Current Tax Expenses on Profit before tax at the enacted (6,87,95,510) (8,52,44,647)
income tax rate in India
Adjustmenis
Expenditure not deductible for Tax 27,97,300 58,17,344
Deferred tax assets not recognised as realization is not probable 6,63,59,319 6,36,64,985
At the effective income tax 3,61,109 {1,57,62,318)
Effective Income Tax Rate % 0.00% 0.00%
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Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100GJ2015PTC082996)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 26 : Contingent liabilities
Amount in Rs.

E As at As at
Palacis March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contingent liabilities not provided for
Disputed demands in respect of

Sales tax and VAT 1,43,34,158 1,54,61,739

Notes :
(a) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect
of the above pending resolution of the respective proceedings.
(bY The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above Contingent liabilities
(¢) The Company believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.
(d) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court {SC} judgement on
Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019. The Company will make provision, on receiving further
clarity on the subiect.

Note 27 : Capital commitments
Amount in Rs.

Darti ' As:at Asat
Parsicacis : March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Capital commitments
Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital _ 45.07,419
L] :

account and not provided for
Other commitments - =

Note 28 : Foreign Exchange Exposures not hedged

A. Exposure Not Hedged

Nalire of Thi0oan " As-atMarch 33,2022 As at March 31,2021

= Pe Currency Amountin ¥€C Amount in Rs: Amount In FC Amoynt in Ks.
Payable to creditors usD 55,260 41,88,300 35,690 26,009,273
Payable to creditors AED 48,200 9,594,607 48,200 9,59,421

Nota 29 : Segment Reporting
Operating segment have been identified on the basis of nature of products and other quantitative criteria specified in the Ind AS 108.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker

(*CODM"} of the company. The company's business activity falls within a single operating business segment of retail trade of Cosmetics &
Accessories through retail and departmental store facilities.

Geographical segment
Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and rest of the world,

Amount in Rs.

= = : Year Ended Year Endéed
Partiolats March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Segment Revenue*
a) In India 2,42,51,96,055 1,41,22,96,075
b) Rest of the world = =
Total Sales 2,42,51,96,055 1,41,22,96,075
Carrying Cost of Segment
Assets**
a) In India 2,45,87,11,365 2,05,50,93,224
b} Rest of the world = i
Total 2,45,87,11,365 2,05,50,93,224
Carrying Cost of Segament Non Current Assets**@
a) In India 83,90,55,761 87,91,84,566
b} Rest of the world = =
Total B3,90,55,761 87,01,84,566

* Based on location of Customers
*#* Based on location of Assets
@ Excluding Financial Assets and Deferred Tax Assets

Iinformation about major customers {revenues from single external customer more than 10% of total revenue}):
Considering the nature of business of Company in which it operates, the Company deals with various customers

including multiple geographics. Consequently, none of the customer contribute materially to the revenue of the

Company.
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Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100GJ2015PTC0§2996)
Notes to the Financial Statements

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets of Gratuity are as follows:

; R Year Ended Year Ended
‘Particalars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Others {Insurance company Products) 100% 100%

(%) of total plan assets 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining above defined henefit obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:

s Year Ended Year Ended

Peeh s March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Discount rate 6.20% 6.20%

5.37% for Front End 5.52% for Front End

Future salary increase Employees Employees

7.46% for Others 5.64% for Qthers

Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.20% 6.20%

30% for Front End 34.2% for Front End

Attrition rate Employees Employees

17.9% for Others 12.8% for Others

Morality rate during employment Indian assured lives Indian assured lives

Mortallty(2006-08) Mortality(2006-08}

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assurnption is as shown below:

Gratuity _ _ Amount in Rs.
_ Increase / {Decrease)in defined benefit obligation”
Particilars Sensitivity level Year Ended ¥Year Ended

March 31, 2022 March 3%, 2021

Gratuity

Disceunt rate 50 basis points increase (1,48,277) (1,13,393)
50 basis points decrease 1,54,361 1,18,635

Salary increase 50 basis points increase 1,26,959 99,319
50 basis peints decrease (1,23,083) (98,193)

Attrition rate 50 basis points increase (31,956) (28,340}
50 basis points decrease 32,082 28,399

The above sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. In presenting the above
sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the
end of reporting pericd.

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligatien has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit abligation
liability recognized in the balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not
change compared with the previous period.

The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan :
Amount in Rs.

2 Year Ended Year Ended
SATCINa March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gratuity
Within the next 12 manths (next annual reporting pericd} 12,80,470 8,19,805
Between 2 ang 5 years 48,39,158 32,83,733
Beyond 5 years 25,76,318 18,51,187
Total expected payments 86,95,946 50,54,725

Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash flows)

- Year Ended Year Ended
garticulars Margh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gratuity 5 years 5 vears

The company does not have any contributions expected towards planned assets for the rext year

Leave encashment

The Company has a policy on leave encashment which are both accumulating and non-accurnulating in nature. The expected cost of
accumulating leave encashment is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet
date using projected unit credit methed on the additional amount expected to be paidfavailed as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in
which the absences occur.

The Company has recognised following as expenses and included in Note No. 20 "Employee benefit expense”.
Amount in Rs.

3 o Year Ended Year Ended
Sancriie : March 31, 2022 ___March 31, 2021
Leave encashment 21,89,412 23,52,980

21,89,412
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Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - US2100GJ2015PTC082596)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Transactions with related parties for the vear ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023,
Amomunt in Rs.

Particulars ' Holding Company Fellow Key Enterprise
“Subsidiaries  Managerial having
Perscnnel _ significant
and Non influence by Key
Executive: Management
Directors Personnael and
Non-Executive
Director

Receiving of Services - Shared services
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021

Receiving of Services - Commission
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021

Receiving of Services - Dthers
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021

Rendering of Services - Shared service
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021

Interest Expense
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021

Issue of shares (Net of Share Application movement}

March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021

Leoan Taken/{Repavment of Lean)
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021

63.24,.114
2,46,93,004

25,00,00,000

(2.36,75,726)
(57,00,00,000)

12,28,99,998
5.69,05.446

3,73,02,276
1,43,34,416

74,60,212
41,88,399

1,74,70.411

39,38,39,870
7,00,00,000

40,550

Balances

Amomunt in Rs.

Particulars

Holding Company:

Fellow

Enterprise.

Subsidiaries  Managerial having
Personnel significant
-and Non  influence by Key
Executive Management
Directors Fersonnel and
‘Non-Executive
Director

Pavyable in respect of Loans
March 31, 2022

= 48,00,88,767 - =
March 31, 2021 2,36,75.726

8.0
8.61,60,130 = -

Guarantee payable

March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021

Pavable in respect of Current Liabilities
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021

Receivable in respect of Current Assets
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021

30,00,00,000 - - -

30.,00.00.000

10,24,28,313

1,72.907

1,51,93,905

14,31,05,699

12,36,936

The amounts recognised as an expense during the year for share based payment in respect of Directors is Rs 94,63,882/-
(March 31, 2021: Rs. 2,23,31,250/-).

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

1) Transaction entered into with related party are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding
balances other than loan given & taken at the vear-end are unsecured and Interest free and settiement cccurs in cash.

2) Loans in INR taken from the refated party carries interest rate of 8.50% (March 31, 2021 ; 8.50%)
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Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100GJ2015PTCO82996)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 34 : Leases
The Company has adopted modified retrospective approach as per para C8 (C) (i) of Ind-AS 116 "Leases" to its leases,

The Company has taken Showrooms and other facilities on lease period of 1 to 9 years with option of renewal.
Disclosures as per Ind AS 116 - Leases are as follows:

Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (Showrooms)

Amount in Rs.

5 Year Ended ¥ear Ended
Particufars : =
Re March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 63,77,33,164 80,03,49,698
Recognition of ROU Asset an adoption of Ind AS 116 4,81,47,145

Additions 15,51,94,004
Deletions

Depreciation {21,53,93,725)

1,47,43,451

(17,73,59,985)

Balance at the end of the year

Movemernt in lease liabilities

66.56,80,588 63,77,33,164

Amount in Rs.

P Year Ended Year Ended

3 March 31, 2022 March 34, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 82,12,30,210 97,62,64,709
Recognition of Lease Liability on adoption of Ind AS 116 N =
Additions 19,51,94,004 1,47,43,451
Deletions = -
Finance cost accrued during the year 8,28,55,746 7,86,98,889

(7,46,92,139)
(20,49,48,409)

Adjustment due to Rent Waivers (Refer Note a below)
Payment of lease liabilities

(11,82,10,927)
(13,02,65,812)

Balance at the end of the year 81,96,39,412

82,12,30,210

Note a: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated July 24, 2020, issued an amendment to Ind AS 116-Leases, by inserting a
practical expedient w.r.t "Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions” effective from the period beginning on or after April 01, 2020 and vide
notification dated June 18, 2021, extended practical expedient up to June 30, 2022.

Pursuant to the above amendment, the Company has applied the practical expedient by accounting the uncenditional rent concessions in
"Other Income".

Amgunt in Rs.
Year Ended
March 31, 2021
15,30,69,435
55,94,64,509

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities
Particulars

~ ¥ear Ended
March 3%, 2022
21,89,00,174
54,95,29,491

Less than one year
One to five years

More than five years 5,12,09,747 10,86,96,266
Total 81,96,39,412 82,12,30,210
The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current
assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.
The amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss are as follows:

Amount in Rs.
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2022
11,66,33,014
8,28,55,746
10,36,80,171
30,31,68,931

March 31, 2021
§,73,29,020
7,86,98,889
6,07,91,544

23,68,19,453

T

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Rent expense - short-term |lease and feases of low value assets
Total
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Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited {CIN - US2100GI2015PTCO82996)
Naotes to the Financial Statements

Note 37 : Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s prindpal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings and trade & other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the company's operations and to support its operations. The company’s principal financial assets include Investments, loans given, trade and other receaivables
and cash & short-term depesits that derive directly from its operations.

The company's risk management is carried out by a Treasury department under pelicies approved by the Board of directors. The company's treasury identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the company's operating units. The board provides written principles for overall risk management, as
well as poiictes covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

{a} Market risk
Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two
types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk Inciude borrowings, deposits, Investments, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments.

Within the various methodologies to analyze and marage risk, the company has implemented a system based on “sensitivity analysis” on symmatric basis. This toal
enables the risk managers to identify the risk position of the entities. Sensitivity anaiysis provides an approximate guantification of the exposure in tha event that
certain specified parameters were to be met under a spacific set of assumptions. The risk estimates provided herg assume;

- a parallel shift of 50-basis points of the interest rate yiald curves in all currencies.

- a simultaneous, parallel foreign exchange rates shift in which the INR appreciates / depreciates against all currencies by 2%

The potentiat economic impact, due to these assumptions, is based on the occurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions and reflects estimated changes resulting
from the sersitivity analysis. Actual results that are included in the Statement of profit & loss may differ materially from these astimates due to actual developments in
the global financial markets.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying valuss of gratuity, pension and other post-retirement obfgations and provisions.

The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
- The sensitivity of the relevant statemant of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respactive market risks. This is based on the financial assets and
financial liabilities held at respective period/vear end including the effect of hedae accounting, if any.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instramant will fluctuate because of changes in the market interst rates. The Company's
explosure to the risk of changes in rearket interest rates relates primiarily o the Company's debt obligations with floating interst rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. As at March 31, 2022, approximately 27%
of the Company's Borrowings are at fixed rate of interest (March 31, 2621: 100%)

Interest rate sensitivity

- Fixed rate financial instruments measured at cost : Since a change in interest rate would not change the carrying amount of this category of Instruments, there is no
net income impact and they are excluded from this analysis

- The effect of interest rate changes on future cash flows is excluded from this analysis.

Particulars Effect on profit before
“hax
March 31, 2022
Increase in 50 basis points {12,50,000)
Decrease in 50 basis points 12,50,000

March 31, 2021
Increase in 50 basis points
Decrease in 50 basis points

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes In foreign exchange rates. The Company
transacts business in local currency and in foreign currency, primarily in USD. The Company has cbtained foreign currency loans and has foreign currency {rade
payables and receivables etc. and is, therefere, exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Company may use forward contracts or foreign exchange options towards
hedaging risk resulting from changes and fiuctuations in foreign currency exchange rate.

The company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging gppropriate percentage of its forgign currency exposure, as approved by Board as per established risk
management policy. Details of the hedge 8 unhedged position of the company given in Note 28.

Foregign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in LS and AED rates to the functional currency of respective entity, with all other
variables held constant. The company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies s not material. The Impact on the company's profit before tax is
due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Armount in Rs.
Effect-on profit

Change in USD £ffect on profit-béfore

Particitars e [ Change in AED rate before fax

March 31, 2022 +2% (52,185) +2% (19,188)
-2% 52,185 -2% 19,188

March 31, 2021 +2% (48,926} +2% (25,956)
-2% 48,926 -2% 25,956

(h) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. To manage this, the
Company periodically assesses financial reliabitity of customers and other counterparties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends and
analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individua! risk limits are set and parfedically reviewed on the basis of such information. The Company is
exposed fo credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, Including deposits with banks, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments.

/!
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Arvind Beavty Brands Retail Private Limited (CIN - U52100G32015PTCOB2996)
Notes te the Financial Statements

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's policy. Investments
of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties who meets the minimum threshold requirements under the counterparty risk sssessment process. The
company monitors the ratings, credit spreads ard financial strength of its counterparties, Based on Its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the company adjusts
its exposure to various counterparties. The company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance sheet as of March 31, 2022 and March 31,
2021 is the carrying amount as disclosed in Note 35.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral cbligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The
company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The company closely monitors its liquidity
position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing inctuding bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from both domestic
and internaticnal banks at an optimized cost. It also enjoys strong access to domestic capital markets across equity.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the company‘s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Less than'T yesr 1 year g more

As at March 3%, 2022

Interest bearing borrowings 73,05,42,161 -
Lease Liabilities 21,89,00,174 60,07,39,238
Trade payables 69,12,72,786 =
Cther financia? liabilities 47,59,196 -
1,64,54,74,317 60,07,39,2338
As at March 31, 2021
Interest bearing borrowings 41,03,39,558 2,26,697
Lease Liabilities 15,30,69,435 66,81,60,775
Trade payables 35,67,97,357 -
Other financial liabilities 1,76,73,796 -
93,78,80,146 66,83,87,472

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in simiar business activities, or activites in the same geographical region, or have sconomic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations
indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to devetopments affecting a particular industry.

Note 3B : Capital management

For the purpose of the company’s capitai management, capital inciudes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributabte to the equity holders of the
cornpany. The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and heslthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustrnents to it in kght of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capitat to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital
using & gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by totel capital plus net debt. The company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash
and short-term deposits {including other bank balance).

Amount in Rs.

| . Asat Asiat
Pertiouiars March 31,2022 arch 31, 2021
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings {Note 13(c)) 73,03,15,464 41,03,14,404
Less: Cash and Cash equivalent (including other bank balance) {3,37,09,851) (34,56,726)
Net debt 69,66,05,6132 40,68,57,678
Equity share capital {Note 11} 8,93,94.880 7.68,94,880
Other equity (Note £2) 6.51,47,724 33.28,75,875
Total capital 15,45,42,604 40,97,70,755
Capital and net debt 85,11,48,217 81,66,28,433
Gearing ratio 81.84% 49.82%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to Immediately cail
loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing leans and barrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021,

Mote 39 : Qthar Notes

a. During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds {either borrowed funds or share premium or
kind of funds) to any cther person(s) or entity(ies), Including foreign entities (Intermediarizs) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Intermediary shail:

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
i) provide any guarantee, security ¢r the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Further, during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company has nat recsived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwige} that the Company shall:

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in cther persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on bghalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii) provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

b. The Company has not invested or traded in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended March 31, 2022 {Previous year. Nil).

. No procesdings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding banami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016} (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder during the year ended March 31, 2022
(Previous year: Nif).

d. The Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution ar government or any government authority during the year ended March
31, 2022 (Previous year; Nil}.

€. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed as inceme any transactions not recordad in the books of accounts in the course of tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961) during the year ended March 31, 2022 (Frevious year: Nil).

f. The Company dees not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Compsanies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956
during the year ended March 31, 2022 (Previous year: Nil}.

Note 40 ; COVID-19

With easing of lockdown restrictions, the Company's performance for the subsequent quarters has been progressively better, until the sama was once again impacted
somewhat in the current quarter due to second wave of Covid 19,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (the Company’) is engaged in the business of
retailing of Cosmetic products and Accessories of SEPHORA and other Partner Brands. SEPHORA
is a French Chain of Cosmetic stores which offers beauty products including make-up, fragrance
and hair care. The Company has some of the best-known international brands apart from
SEPHORA, like MUFE, BOSCIA, DIOR, CLINIQUE, STILA, ESTEE LAUDER, LANCOME,

The Company is a Subsidiary of Arvind Fashions Limited and is incorporated. under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company. is
located at Naroda Road, Ahmedabad - 380025.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on May 26, 2022.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation and Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on the accrual
basis except for the certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value, the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent notified (“the Act?).

Accounting policies were consistently applied'except where a newly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy: hitherto in use.

The Financial Statements comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including
other comprehensive income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows as
at March 31, 2021 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division II' of schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant
schedule III) as applicable to financial statement.

2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The. financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
followings:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments);

¢ Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value;

¢ Share based payments;

o Defined benefit plans = plan assets measured at fair value;
¢ Valuein Use




3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its
financial statements consistently to all the periods presented:

3.1.Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

An asset is current when it is:
e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or-consumed in the normal operating
cycle; .
» Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
° EXxpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period: or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
o Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

o There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current:
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities:
Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is
not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve months.

3.2.Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of futire events) that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Difference between actual results
and estimates are recognised in the period in which the resuits are known / materialised.
The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date,
or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as
at the reporting date.

//Z %




3.3.Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement of such transaction and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are recognised in profit-or:loss:
They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions, Non-monetary
items measured at fair vaiuein a foreign currency: are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain . or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair

value gain or loss'is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

3.4.Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at the end of
each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability
Or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions .that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

e A R e EPUCCRTER TR IR ARANS. ADREY TS




A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fajr value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
s level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
e level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valye
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurement; such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such
as asset held for sale,

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion
with and approval by the Company’s Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
Management decides, after discussions with the Company’'s external valuers, which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabiiities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents;

Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable on yearly basis,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.
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This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.
¢ Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
¢ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
o Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date
of transition
e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

3.5.Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major. inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as &
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective assetif the
recognition criteria for a provision are met,

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take stbstantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to
the period till such assets are ready to be put to use,

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready
for their intended use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognised:

Depreciation‘

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets
less residual values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 except for following assets
category as shown in Table below.

.
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Plant & Machinery 15 Years 6 to 15 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years 6:to 8 Years
Furniture & Fixture 10 Years 6 to 9 Years
Computer-Software - 5 Years

Motor Cars 6 Years 4 Years

However, Leasehold Improvements have been depreciated considering the lease term or
useful life whichever is lower.

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over
which management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are

different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act
2013.

Any change in useful file are being applied prospectively in accordance with Ind AS 8 -
"Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful:life, they are
accounted for. as separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful
life or-over the remaining useful life of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately: charged for the
period of use,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.6.Leases

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract.is; or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has.the
right to direct the use of the asset. :

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use  asset
(ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the iease.
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3.7.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequentiy
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset, Right of Use assets
are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable; using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to
the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will-exercise
an extension or a termination option.,

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a iessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified ‘as a finance or operating lease,
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases;

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease,

Borrowing cost
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) and exchange

differences arising from foreign currency: borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost.

A e

S Lt T g L



3.8,

3.9.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asser
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sgle
are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset.

Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents
the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available outof money borrowed
specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments. is
deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project
form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted
average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Company during the year,
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the statement of profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets s
interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they. occur.
intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Foliowing
initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs, -are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed asfinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be Impaired,
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gains: or losses arising: from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation

Value of License Brands acquired has been amortized on Straight Line basis over the period
of five years,

Software is: depreciated over management estimate of its useful life of three-five years.
Inventories

Inventories of Raw material, Stock-in-trade and Packing Material are valued at the lower of
cost -and net realisable value.
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Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted
for as follows:

e Stock in Trade: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis.

All other inventories are valued at cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business; less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.10.Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sel!
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Company.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cu rrent market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five

years, For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,
except for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is. also recognised - in. other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any. indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
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would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation:increase;

3.11.Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from. sale of traded goods and related services.
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principalin its revenue arrangements, except for the agency
services below, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to
the customer.

a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer, i.e., generaily on delivery of the goods.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes - a variable amount, the Company estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to
the customer, The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variabla
consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of goods provide
customers with a right of return and discounts. The rights of return and discounts give rise to
variable ‘consideration.

i. Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period:;
The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will be returned
because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Company.
will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that
can be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned, instead
of revenue, the Company recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset (and
corresponding adjustment to change in inventory is also recognised for the right to recover
products from a customer,

ii. Discounts

Discounts are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable
consideration for the expected future discounts, the Company applies the expected value
method, The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
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<)

d)

e)

f)

Sale of goods ~ customer loyalty programme (deferred revenue)

The Company operates a loyalty point programme which allows customers to accumuiate
points when they purchase the products. The points can be redeemed for free products,
subject to a minimum number of points being obtained. Consideration received is allocated
between the product sold and the points issued, with the consideration allocated to the points
equal to their fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by applying a statistical
analysis. The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue when the
points are redeemed.

Rendering of services

Revenue from store displays and sponsorships are recognised based on the period for which
the products or the sponsors’ advertisements are promoted/ displayed. Facility management
fees are recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract.

Revenue from other services are recognised based on the services rendered in accordance
with the terms of contacts on the basis of 'work performed:

Gift Vouchers

The amount collected on sale of 3 gift voucher is recognized as a liability and transferred to
revenue (sales) when redeemed or to revenue (sale of services) on expiry

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering ali the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension,; call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included
in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

Insurance claims

Claims receivable on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company. is
reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

3.12, Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

o e

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

T A

T g

A e




a) Financial assets
(#) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset. '

(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial assets _
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories;
s Financial assets at amortised cost
¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCD
° Financial assets at fair value through profit.or loss (FVTPL)
¢ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCD

» - Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset glve rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement,; such
financial assets are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generalily applies to trade and other receivables.

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is meastired at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category. are measured initially as well
as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&J .
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
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is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
financial asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

= Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified
as.at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as
at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing
So reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value with all changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or

= The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets:. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business




model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when'the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for:

@riginai Revised Accounting treatment .
classification | classification
Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
Cost new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated

based on the new gross carrying amount,
Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification: date.

Difference between previous amortised cost and
fair vaiue is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR
due to reclassification,

FVOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new amortised cost carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or lossin OClLis adjusted against
fair value, Consequently, the asset is measured
as if it had always been measured at amortised

cost.
FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new carrying amount. No other adjustment s
required. v
FVTOCI FVTRL Assets continue to be measured at fair value;

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
date,

(v)Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure:

o - Financial assets that are debt instru ments, and are measured at: amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind'AS 11 and
Ind.AS 18




The Company follows ‘simpilified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:
¢ Trade receivahles or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing
component
« Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing
component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore separation of
time value of money, and
* Al lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company. to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition, If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

s All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument, However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

¢ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss {P&L). This amount is reflected
in a separate line under the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease
recejvables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the
net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carry[ng amount.
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss; the Company: combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified o a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are  credit - impaired on purchase/
origination.

b) Financial Liabilities .
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, \in. the case of
financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.

(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial labilities depends on their classification, as described
below:; :

e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financia!: liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in.the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and onty if the criteria in Ind-AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated. as FVTPL, fair value gains/ ‘losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

». Loans and Borrowings
This'is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR




method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process;

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance
sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts.is recognised in the statement of profit-or loss.

c) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts
to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative: financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly
to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised
in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or
treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently: resuits in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
e Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of &
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
» Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is
either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency. risk in an
unrecognised. firm commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents
the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge,
the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the
risk-being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes
in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged




item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected
to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described
below:

(i) Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged: item
attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged
item and is also recognised in the statement of profit-and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to
carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge
using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and
no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item,
the subseguent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable
to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss
recognised:in profit and loss,

(ii)Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in.OCI
in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the statement of profit.and loss:

The Company. uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign
currency. risk: in. forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward
commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective
portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised . in finance costs and the
ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other income or
expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are transferred
to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold; terminated or exercised without replacement
or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked,
or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast
transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.
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